UNITED
NATIONS E

Economic and Social Distr.

Council GENERAL

E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
16 April 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 50t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 9 April 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)
| ater: M. STROHAL (Austri a)
(Vi ce- Chai r man)
CONTENTS
ORGANI ZATI ON OF THE WORK OF THE SESSI ON (conti nued)
QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOVS | N ANY PART
OF THE WORLD, W TH PARTI CULAR REFERENCE TO COLONI AL AND OTHER DEPENDENT

COUNTRI ES AND TERRI TORI ES, | NCLUDI NG

(a)  QUESTION OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comm ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97-11952 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.25 p.m

ORGANI ZATI ON OF THE WORK OF THE SESSI ON (agenda item 3) (conti nued)

1. The CHAIRMAN said that, in view of the backl og of speakers, he would
have to apply strictly the previously agreed rules on the time limts for
speeches. Collective statenents by groups of del egations or groups of

non- gover nment al organi zati ons (NGOs) would be given nore tinme, although any
additional statenent by an individual del egation or organization represented
in such a collective statenent should be very brief and not repeat the
col l ective statement's points.

2. M. BAQUEROT (Director of the Division of Adm nistration) said that he
had been asked by the Controller to clarify the procedures for adm nistrative
and budgetary matters. The Conm ssion had been showi ng a growi ng tendency to
deal with such matters in its resolutions and decisions; for exanple, a draft
resolution on racism racial discrimnation, xenophobia and rel ated

i ntol erance nmade detail ed recomendati ons on budgetary and adm nistrative
aspects. Oher draft resolutions touched upon human resource issues such as
geographi cal distribution and secondnent from Governments. Those issues had
been the subject of a recent resolution of the Fifth Comrittee, which in sonme
i nstances diverged widely fromthe proposals in the draft resolutions before
t he Conmi ssi on

3. He thus recalled the rel evant provisions of Ceneral Assenbly

resol ution 45/248, Part B VI, which reaffirmed that the Fifth Comm ttee was
responsi bl e for adm nistrative and budgetary matters, reaffirmed also the role
of the Advisory Comrittee on Admi nistrative and Budgetary Questions (ACABQ,
expressed concern at the tendency of other intergovernmental bodies to involve
t henmsel ves in those matters, and invited the Secretary-General to provide al
such bodies with information on the rel evant procedures.

4, In accordance with rule 28 of the rules of procedure of the functiona
conmi ssions of the Economic and Social Council, the Commi ssion would be

i nformed of the budgetary inplications, if any, of requests in its draft

resol utions or decisions. |f additional costs could not be net from existing
resources, funds would have to be requested fromthe contingency fund, in
accordance with General Assenbly resolutions 41/213 and 42/211. If the costs
could not be met fromthat fund, resources would have to be redepl oyed from
low-priority areas or the additional activities would have to be deferred.

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N ANY PART
OF THE WORLD, W TH PARTI CULAR REFERENCE TO COLONI AL AND OTHER DEPENDENT
COUNTRI ES AND TERRI TORI ES, | NCLUDI NG

(a) QUESTI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (agenda item 10) (continued)
(E/CN. 4/1997/5, 6 and Add.1 and Add.2, 8, 9, 12 and Corr.1 and
Add. 1 and Corr.1, 48-50, 51 and Add.1, 52-54, 55 and Corr. 1,
56-59, 60 and Add.1, 61, 62 and Add.1l, 63, 64, 113, 114, 118,
123-125, 129 and 132; E/CN. 4/1997/N&O 3-6, 12, 14-17, 21, 25 and
27; A 51/457, 460, 466, 478, 479, 481, 490, 496, 538 and
542/ Add. 2)

5. Ms. GRAZ (Reporters Wthout Borders) said that genuine freedom
of the press existed in less than one third of the Menber States of the
United Nations. In Algeria, 57 journalists had been killed by Islamc



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 3

extrem sts since 1993 while the Al gerian authorities arrested journalists and
harassed and censored the press by every possi ble neans. There was no freedom
of the press in Cuba, where even the possession of a fax or photocopying
machi ne could lead to a prison sentence. The few independent journalists in
that country were constantly hounded and accused of produci ng enemy propaganda
or even spying. Ethiopia had the worst record of any African country for

i mprisoning journalists; of the 15 journalists held on 1 January 1997 for

publi shing information on security matters or ethnic rivalries, only 4 had
been sentenced, while sonme had been held for up to a year awaiting sentencing.
Moreover, the police in Ethiopia used torture to repress journalists, as in

t he case of Iskinder Nega, editor of the weekly Habesha. China and Turkey
were other notable culprits where criticismby journalists was sil enced.

6. M. SH MYl (Wrld Peace Council) said that, while overt mlitary
dictatorships were a thing of the past in Pakistan, it was a strange
denocratic systemthat had set up a supra-constitutional body of non-el ected

i ndi vidual s to oversee the Government and had changed its Constitution to

decl are sonme groups, such as the Ahnmadiyas, to be second-class citizens. The
rights of mnorities were being tranpled on, with Christians being executed
for blaspheny and fundamental i st nobs running riot, and even Miuslim sects were
begi nning to feel insecure.

7. In Japan, the heavy concentration of American mlitary bases on Cki nawa
had been detrinmental to the islanders' enjoynment of their fundanental human
rights. The people of the main island had been constrained to sacrifice

20 per cent of their territory to the bases, which had outlived their

useful ness and hi ndered the heal thy devel opnment of the Cki nawan peopl e.

8. M. ABU-EISSA (Arab Lawyers Union) said he was concerned at the
deterioration in the Mddle East situation as a result of Israel's
expansi oni st settlement policies. He deplored the decision of the

United States Governnment to use its veto to block two key resolutions of the
Security Council, which would have gone a | ong way towards defusing the crisis
caused by Israel's decision to build a Jewi sh settlement in eastern Jerusal em
preventing the wi despread violation of human rights and consolidating a just
peace based on Israel's withdrawal fromall occupied Arab territories.

9. A clear distinction should be nmade between armed struggles for
liberation, terrorismenmanating fromreligious extrem sm and viol ence rooted
in the socio-economc crisis faced by many countries in the South. The
killings in Algeria and Upper Egypt and the blatant human rights violations in
Af ghani stan required a new approach and new nmechani snms to deal with those
situati ons.

10. In Sudan, the policies of the Governnment of the National I|slamc Front
were at variance with human rights principles and the Governnent continued to
reject all United Nations instruments for protecting human rights, including
the Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the Sudan, who had
been thrown out of the country. The civil war had spread, causing |arge
nunbers of people to flee to neighbouring countries, and m nors, who had been
forcibly conscripted, were being killed in combat. He urged the Conm ssion to



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 4

call on the Sudanese Governnment to cease torturing detai nees, end slavery,
st op sponsoring and exporting terrorismand restore a pluralistic denocracy
based on the rule of |aw

11. VWhile welcoming the initiatives to end the conflict in Somalia, he
decried the doubl e standards applied by countries of the North to human rights
issues in the South, and said that the enbargoes violating the human rights of
the peoples of Iraq and the Libyan Arab Jamahiriya nmust be lifted.

12. Ms. NEURY (Centre Europe - Tiers Monde) said that the CGovernnent of
Rwanda faced the daunting task of rebuilding a country that had been
devast at ed by genoci de and was crippled by foreign debt. That debt anmounted
to al most 90 per cent of Rwanda's gross donestic product (GDP), and the cost
of servicing it represented 46 per cent of its exports. Mst of the |oans
agreed upon between 1990 and 1994 had been linked to a structural adjustnent
programe of the International Mnetary Fund (I MF) but had been used to buy
weapons and maintain an army that had grown overnight from5,000 to

40,000 men. The forner regine continued to have access to the funds
concerned, via a so-called subsidiary of the Rwandan Nati onal Bank and with
the conplicity of several private banks.

13. It was difficult to justify holding people responsible for debts
incurred by dictators inposed on them by external agents. Rwanda's foreign
debt should be carefully exanined to separate legitimte debts fromthose to
which creditors could lay no legal claim |In fact, given the conditions in
whi ch the debt had been contracted, all |oans agreed upon between 1990 and
1994 should be unconditionally cancell ed.

14. More generally, the special rapporteurs of the Commi ssion should refer
specifically in their reports on countries to econom c, social and cultura
rights, as required by Conm ssion resolution 1995/15.

15. Ms. PROUVEZ (I nternational Conmi ssion of Jurists) said that

di sappearances, extrajudicial killings and torture were becom ng increasingly
comon in Turkey, where the authorities regularly violated internationa

humani tarian | aw, especially in the counter-insurgency canpai gn agai nst the
Kurdi sh Workers' Party (PKK). Fighting in the south-eastern provinces had | ed
to the displacenent of three mllion people, who | acked adequate food, housing
and nedi cal care and for whomthere was no adequate compensation

16. Wil e condemi ng the taking of hostages by the Tupac Amaru Revol utionary
Movement at the Japanese Enbassy in Lim, an unacceptable formof politica
opposition, she said there were other causes for concern about human rights in
Peru. The system of “faceless judges”, used in trials linked with terrorism
led to a denial of justice and of the rights of the accused. The adoption of
a new |l aw to exam ne the cases of persons tried or sentenced under terrorist

| aws was wel come inasnuch as it had led to the rel ease of 325 innocent people
but the individuals concerned had not received adequate reparation and their
trials had not been declared null and void.

17. The transition to denpcracy in Nigeria was being conducted am dst a wave
of harassnment, intinmdation and the arbitrary arrest of human rights
activists. The Nigerian mlitary Governnment had not been cooperative with the



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 5

efforts of the General Assenbly and the Conm ssion on Human Rights to end the
gross violations of human rights in the country. It had deliberately
interpreted in a restrictive manner the nmandate of the Special Rapporteurs on
t he i ndependence of the judiciary and on extrajudicial, summary and arbitrary
executions, thereby rendering Conmi ssion resolution 1996/ 79 neani ngl ess. Her
organi zation therefore urged the Commi ssion to appoint a special rapporteur to
undertake a thorough study of the human rights situation in Nigeria.

18. M. XIAO Q ang (Asian Cultural Forum on Devel opnent) said that,
according to the Chinese Governnment's own statistics, over 2,000
“counter-revolutionaries” were inprisoned in that country, but there was
reason to believe that that figure grossly under-represented the situation

In over 200 wel | -docunented cases of political detention, the individuals had
been inprisoned on crimnal charges and those cases did not appear in the
Governnment's statistics. Mreover, the Government routinely used

adm nistrative detention, which it called “re-education through |abour”, as a
means of sending human rights activists to |abour canps, without trial, for up
to three years. Those prisoners |ikew se did not appear in the statistics.

19. Human rights were not a luxury but a necessity for China if stability
was to be ensured. There were already serious problens of unenployment,

m grant | abour, appalling conditions in factories and corruption in the
comercial and administrative system w thout a peaceful neans for people to
address those issues, a crisis would ensue, underm ning China's economnic
devel opnent.

20. Consequently, by highlighting human rights problens in China, the
Commi ssion woul d both hel p the Chinese people and facilitate the country's
transformation into a humane, free society.

21. M. NYANDAK (Society for Threatened Peoples) said that the
representative of China had described his earlier statenent on the rights of
detai nees in Tibet and China as “fabricated”. It would have been preferable
for the Chinese delegation to address the specific cases mentioned in that
st at enent .

22. The Ti betan people had been denied its rights to freedom of expression
assenbly and associ ation for nore than four decades. |Its |land had become a
Chi nese col ony where human rights were violated daily. |In the nane of

“econom ¢ devel opnent”, China was pursuing its policy of establishing Chinese
settlenments in Tibet, with the result that the six mllion Tibetans had becone
a mnority in their owm |and. Coercive birth control practices applied to

Ti betan wonen were reducing the Tibetan population, with the ai m of

anni hilating the Tibetan identity.

23. That identity was being sinultaneously destroyed by repression in
respect of religion, the Tibetan | anguage and traditional custons. The
phenonenon anmounted to a racial, cultural and religious genocide which the
i nternational comunity nust address before it was too |ate.

24, Ms. PILEGE (International Educational Devel opnent), speaking on behalf
of many other NGOs as well as her own, said that the civilian population in
the Tam | honel and on the island of Sri Lanka continued to be the target of



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50

page 6

mlitary operations, disappearances, extrajudicial killings, rape, torture,
arbitrary arrest and indefinite detention. The north-eastern part of the
island was still under an enmbargo on essential food and medi ci ne, and nore

t han 825, 000 di splaced Tanmils were living in appalling conditions, including
acute shortages of water, food and nedicine. She urged the Commi ssion to
adopt a resol ution addressing that problem

25. Speaki ng on behal f of her own organization, she said that, because the
regime had not allowed the Special Rapporteur on the situation of human rights
in the Islam c Republic of Iran to visit the country, his report did not
reflect the actual situation there, especially the use of brutality and
torture by the reginme's arned thugs and the situation of wonmen, which was
graver than in any other country. Even small schoolgirls were given 10 | ashes
for inmproper veiling. The Jewish community in Iran had been drastically
reduced from 120,000 to 20,000, mainly through escape, and that was al so

di sturbing.

26. In Iraq, the needs of civilians had been exacerbated by war damage. Any
aspect of the economic sanctions or the oil for food agreement that controlled
or limted humanitarian aid to civilians violated the 1949 CGeneva Conventi ons
and shoul d be considered null and void.

27. M. MANEU (Pax Ronana) said the prolongation for an additional year of
the mandate of the |Independent Expert on the situation of human rights in
Guat emal a woul d provide the Commission with an exhaustive study on the
subject. The peace process in that country should be strongly supported by
means of all the advisory and nonitoring nmechani sms avail able to the

United Nations.

28. In Peru, menbers of the armed forces were continuing to detain
arbitrarily and to torture the population in general, and in particul ar
menbers of the Indian comunity. The Comnm ssion should consider the
possibility of appointing an independent expert to informit concerning the
situation there.

29. In Col onbia, forced di sappearances, summary and extrajudi ci al executions
and arbitrary detention carried out by nmenbers of the armed forces and

param litary groups were increasing in nunber with conplete inmpunity. Hunman
rights defenders were subjected to threats and persecution. The Conm ssion
shoul d keep the situation in Col onbia under close review and request the

Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights to submit periodic reports on the subject.

30. M. ROSSI (International Association for Religious Freedom said that
religious extrem smwas a phenonenon affecting all the major religions, though
its nmost dangerous nanifestations in recent years had involved Islamc
movenments. | n Algeria, over 50,000 nen, wormen and children had been killed in
God's name since 1992. In Iran, the Government was continuing its policy of
intolerance of religious mnorities, the Baha'is in particular being
systematically persecuted and harassed and nany of themKkill ed.

31. The Governnent of Pakistan was having difficulty in containing the
vi ol ence connected with Islamc fanaticism |In February 1997, a Christian
town had been sacked and burned and 13 churches damaged by a frenzied crowd



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 7

under the erroneous inpression that a nmenber of the Christian community had
def aced pages of the Koran. He welconed the fact that the Governnent had
al ready taken steps to reconstruct the town and its churches.

32. Islamic extrem smwas growi ng in a nunber of other countries, including
t he Sudan, Afghani stan, |ndonesia, Egypt, Saudi Arabia and Turkey. 1In the

Tur ki sh-occupi ed part of Cyprus, holy places, icons and iconostases had been
prof aned, destroyed or sold. The international conmunity nust act vigorously
against the rise of religious extrem smand take the necessary steps to ensure
that the dignity of the human person was respected everywhere in the world.

33. Ms. BAUER (Article XIX - International Centre against Censorship) said
that the system of governnent by decree in Nigeria was inimcal to the
pronoti on and protection of human rights and reports reveal ed the existence of
a pattern of systematic abuses and violations of human rights there. Her
organi zation thus urged the Conm ssion to appoint a special rapporteur on the
situation of human rights in Nigeria with a mandate to report to both the
CGeneral Assenbly and the Conmission itself.

34. Recent statements and actions by China suggested that, after the
handover of power, the franmework of human rights protections currently in

pl ace in Hong Kong woul d be conprom sed. There was a proposal, for exanple,
to repeal the public order and societies ordinances, which would open the way
to requiring police perm ssion before peaceful denobnstrations could be held
and to barring links with organizations overseas. |Its current session was the
Commi ssion's | ast opportunity to make clear to the Chinese Governnent the

i nternational community's determ nation to ensure that the standards of human
rights protection in effect in Hong Kong at the tine of the transfer of
authority were nmintai ned.

35. The continui ng detention of denpbcratic political |eaders, witers and
academ cs in Burma was deeply disturbing, particularly the well-being of
Daw Aung San Suu Kyi. Continuing censorship, not only of information of a

political nature, but also of materials on government policies concerning the
environnent and fam |y and reproductive health, was also a cause for concern

36. M. MFUAMBA (International Centre for Human Ri ghts and Denocratic

Devel opnent) said that his organization fully endorsed all the conclusions set
out in the report of the Special Rapporteur on the situation of human rights
in Rwanda (E/CN. 4/1997/61), whose mandate should be renewed. Though enor nous
efforts had been made by the Governnment of Rwanda to restore nornalcy, they
wer e overshadowed by the violent conditions surrounding the closing of the
canps in eastern Zaire, which had resulted in the directionless flight of many
t housands of persecuted refugees. The forcible closure of refugee canps in
Tanzani a had created dangerous precedents for the role of the United Nations
H gh Comm ssi oner for Refugees (UNHCR). The international community nust
accept its responsibility for those events in that it had permtted the
situation to deteriorate by taking no action to halt a flagrant arns trade or
to di sarmthose persons who were hol di ng refugee popul ati ons host age.

37. In Burundi, a process of denocratization that had been well under way
had been abruptly halted by the assassination of the President and nenbers of
his cabinet in Cctober 1993. The country was on the brink of chaos and in a



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 8

state of permanent civil war. The Special Rapporteur on the human rights
situation in that country had sounded the alarmbells, to which the Conm ssion
shoul d pay full attention and renew his nandate.

38. Oning to the civil war in the east of the country sparked by the
presence of armed refugees from Rwanda and Burundi, Zaire had been pl unged
into a violent process of political change, and its future was uncertain. The
rebel forces seenmed on the verge of inposing conditions for peace on the shaky
regi me of President Mbutu. It was to be hoped that all those, on both sides,
who were guilty of crimes would be brought to justice and that Zaire would
rapidly resume its progress towards denocracy. His organization fully
endorsed the concl usions and reconmendati ons of the Special Rapporteur on
Zaire and reconmended renewal of his mandate. It also reconmended the
establ i shnment of an international conm ssion of inquiry.

39. M. VERFAILLIE (International Association for the Defence of Religious
Li berty) said that, thanks partly to the Commi ssion, the right to freedom of
religion was enjoyed in the genuine denocracies, but in many ot her countries
it was systematically violated. |In sonme quarters, opposition to human rights
was growi ng ever nore overt. At the same tine, admittedly, religious
expression was taking on ever nore extraordinary and sonetines extrenme forns.
H s organi zati on was, however, particularly worried by the deep hostility
directed at “sects” and new religi ous novenments.

40. It did not advocate unlimted religious freedom Society clearly

had to accommpdate the various freedons with each other. To condemm al

“sects” out of hand, however, was irrational and unfair. They should be
treated on the sanme basis as any other religion, traditional or otherw se

The United Nations should pronote international neetings between the
representatives of different religions to encourage themto think nore deeply
about their position on the freedom of conscience and religion. States should
not succunb to pressure frominternational critics or to sensationalism

41. M. AHDEROM (Baha'i International Comrunity) said that the |list of human
rights violations that the Baha'is suffered in the Islam c Republic of Iran
had changed little over the 17 years since the matter had first been brought
to the Comm ssion's attention. Baha'is were still the targets of such overt
atrocities as execution, torture and inprisonnment, as well as nore subtle
forms of discrimnation.

42. At the current session, he wished to focus on the cases of four of

the 14 Baha'is currently inprisoned in lran. Those four had been sentenced to
death, two of them for apostasy, although the right to change one's religion
was recogni zed within the franework of internationally established standards
in the field of human rights. As the Conm ssion's Special Rapporteur on
religious intolerance and Special Representative on Iran had urged, the
Government shoul d revi ew and set aside the death sentences; return community
properties and conpensate for the disruption of places of worship; guarantee
equal treatnment by the judiciary; and re-establish the Baha'i institutions.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 9

43. Baha'i institutions constituted the core around which Baha'i conmunity
life revolved. Their dissolution was equivalent to abolishing the clergy in
Christian communities, since they perforned such functions as marri ages and
burials. Their re-establishment was thus of crucial inportance.

44. The continual persecution and harassment of the Baha'is was ained at
denoral i zing the community, choking the Iife out of it and ultimately
annihilating it, as outlined in a secret nenorandum issued by the Islamc
Suprene Revol utionary Cul tural Council. [Individual menmbers of the community
had shown great courage, heartened by the Conm ssion's many resolutions on the
situation of human rights in the Islamc Republic of Iran

45. He appeal ed to the Conmi ssion to consider how the Government coul d be
brought to inplenment the recommendati ons of the Special Rapporteur on
religious intolerance. It should devise a tinetable as a yardstick for

measuring the inprovenent of the human rights situation in Iran

46. M. CUNNIAH (International Confederation of Free Trade Unions (ICFTU))
expressed deep concern at the increasing nunber of States which were becom ng
gross violators of trade union rights. Many seenmed to consider free and

i ndependent trade unions not as partners, but as obstacles to devel opnent.

47. In the Republic of Korea, after two nonths of strikes and an intense
i nternational canpai gn, the Governnent had w thdrawn its new | abour

| egi sl ati on, but the new version too, violated internationally recognized
| abour standards.

48. In I ndonesia, the trade union | eader Miuchtar Pakpahan continued to be
the victimof systematic harassnent by the authorities. H's health had
seriously deteriorated in custody and he had been hospitalized, but the
authorities had refused himperm ssion to travel abroad for nedical treatnent.
| CFTU woul d hol d the Indonesian Government responsible for any further
deterioration in his health.

49. | CFTU woul d shortly rel ease a conprehensive report on the continued

viol ations of trade union rights in China, together with a list of 67 detained
trade union activists. He hoped that the report would | ead to the adoption of
a strong resolution on the situation of human rights in China.

50. There had been no inprovenent in the situation of trade union rights in
Ni geria, where trade union | eaders were still detained without trial. The
Ni geri an Labour Congress was still managed by a government - appoi nt ed

adm ni strator and a new decree enpowered the Mnister of Labour to cancel the
regi stration of any trade union. There was no appeal against any such
cancel | ati on.

51. In Swazil and, the Covernnent had arrested trade union | eaders, follow ng
a strike in February 1997 to obtain denocratic reforns in the Kingdom The
trade unioni sts had been rel eased, but no action had been taken to inprove the
soci al and econonic situation of the country.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 10

52. Free trade unions were not allowed to operate in the Sudan

Sone 25 trade union | eaders were still detained without charge or trial

The Conmi ssion should call on the Government to release theminmediately
and unconditionally. [CFTU also had strong evi dence of gross violations of
human rights in Colonbia, Costa Rica, Belarus, Lithuania, Kazakstan, the
Islami c Republic of Iran, Mdrocco, Niger, Djibouti, Chad, Turkey and Myanmar
The Comm ssion should take strong nmeasures against all those countries.

53. M. Strohal (Austria), Vice-Chairnman, took the Chair.

54. M. MBOM O ONDO BACHENG (North South XXlI) said he was concerned at the
situation in the Great Lakes region of Africa. There had been a recrudescence
of the struggle for influence by the great Powers, to the detrinent of African
States whose territorial integrity and sovereignty were at risk. There was a
new drive towards col oni zati on and humani tari an concerns were secondary

t her et o.

55. The situation of the nunmerous refugees in Zaire and Burundi had not
inmproved. In the war in Zaire there was no protection for civilians, who
suffered both fromthe warring parties and fromthe mlitias of the former
Rwandan arned forces and other nercenaries. The basic principles of
humanitarian | aw and the International Bill of Human Ri ghts were being flouted
and the warring parties paid no regard to refugee canps. There had been
forced resettlenment in various parts of Burundi and the lives of thousands of
civilians were threatened. Reports by the United Nations O fice in Burund

and by the Special Rapporteur gave no grounds for optimsm

56. Many people who had taken part in the genocide in Rwanda and massacres
in Burundi wal ked free in both Africa and Europe. Such inpunity could | ead
to further human rights abuses and his organi zation believed that the
International Crimnal Tribunal should beconme a permanent body with rea
authority and the power to try those truly responsible for human rights
violations, nanmely, the instigators rather than the perpetrators.

57. In the countries of the North, particularly the United States,
raci sm and xenophobia were on the rise. Police killings of blacks and

Latin Anericans in the United States were increasing and prosecution of those
commtting such crimes was exceptional. The police had just been given even
greater arbitrary powers. The large prison population in that country

consi sted disproportionately of blacks and Latin Americans. Social aid
budgets for the poorest had been reduced and the right to vote of col oured
peopl e had been questi oned.

58. Ms. BAUTI STA (Latin Anmerican Federation of Associations of Relatives of
Di sappear ed Det ai nees) said she was concerned at the grow ng incidence of

massi ve and systematic violations of human rights in Colonmbia. 1In 1996, there
had been at |east 1,500 sumrmary executions, 180 enforced di sappearances,
330 killings of the dispossessed, including street children, and 278 cases of

torture. Sonme 60 per cent of such deeds had been carried out by governnent
agents and paramlitary groups operating in strongly mlitarized areas.

Mor eover, there were over a million displaced persons and an ever grow ng

i nci dence of harassment, threats and killings of human rights activists.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50

page 11
59. In Mexico, arbitrary detention, inprisonnent and torture struck
particularly hard at the indigenous and peasant popul ation, while threats and
intimdation directed at human rights activists had doubled. In view of the

unaccept abl e soci al consequences, it was essential that Mexico should be
visited jointly by the Special Rapporteurs on questions relevant to torture
and on extrajudicial, sumrary or arbitrary executions.

60. Col onbi a, too, should be visited by those Special Rapporteurs and by the
Wor ki ng Group on Enforced or Involuntary Di sappearances. The Ofice of the
Hi gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights in Col onbia should start work as soon as
possi bl e and insist on the inplenentation of the recomendati ons nmade by the
speci al rapporteurs and working groups over the past nine years; not only had
nost of them not been inplenented, but measures running directly counter to

t hem had been taken, such as the legalization of paramlitary groups, which
had been guilty of grave violations of human rights.

61. The granting of inpunity was the ideal breeding ground for systematic
violations of human rights; under various pretexts - for exanple that the
violations in question had taken place in the past, that those responsible
had not been identified or that “reconciliation” |egislation had been
passed - those who had conmitted such crinmes escaped scot-free.

62. M. POLANCO (Latin American Federation of Associations of Relatives

of Di sappeared Detai nees) said that Guatemal a needed the support of the

i nternational comunity follow ng the signing of the Agreenment on a Firm and
Lasti ng Peace. He therefore urged the Commission to extend the nmandate of the
I ndependent Expert for at |east one further year. Her presence was badly
needed in what would be a year of transition during which denocracy, respect
for human rights and the rule of |law were to be established.

63. Human rights continued to be violated, including some which did not fal
within the remt of the United Nations M ssion for the Verification of Human
Ri ghts and of Conpliance with the Conmtnments of the Conprehensive Agreenent
on Human Rights in Guatemala (M NUGUA), such as authoritariani sm censorship
of the press, slanderous attacks on human rights activists and | egislation
agai nst freedom of association

64. Ms. ALVAREZ (Wbnen's International Denocratic Federation) said that, for
al nost 40 years, the Cuban people had been followi ng the path of independence,
soverei gnty and social justice. It suffered, however, fromthe ill egal
aggressive policy of the United States of Anerica, which had naintained a
genoci dal bl ockade since the early 1960s. For Cuban wonen, the result was an
ongoi ng violation of their human rights. Their famlies had difficulty in
obt ai ni ng the basic necessities of life but the worst aspect of all was the

i npossi bility of obtaining essential medicines for children and ol d peopl e.
The mandate of the Special Rapporteur on Cuba should be withdrawn, since it
served only the interests of a third country which had done nuch harmto the
Conmi ssion's credibility.

65. It had taken 40 years for the Pentagon to realize that the instruction
it had provided for those who sought to conbat opposition in Latin Amrerica
violated human rights. It had finally withdrawn its instruction manuals but



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 12

the deaths, cases of torture and di sappearances it had instigated
t hr oughout Latin America could not be considered a sinple error in the
def ence of denocracy.

66. Her organi zation was particularly concerned by the grow ng nunbers of
m grant women workers who were enpl oyed outside the jurisdiction of |abour
regul ations. Lastly, it applauded the efforts nmade by the Chi nese people on
its path to developnent and its struggle for the equality of wonen.

67. M. WAREHAM (I nternational Association against Torture) said that, in
Decenber 1996, the Republic of Korea had enacted | aws which attacked organi zed
| abour and nade the military responsible for enforcing the notorious Nationa
Security Law. In that connection, he quoted the cases of M. Koe Ae- Soon and
of two fornmer soldiers of the Denocratic People's Republic of Korea who had
been inprisoned since the 1950s. His organization urged the Comm ssion to
demand that the Republic of Korea drop the charges agai nst Ms. Koe, rel ease
M. Ahn and M. Kim and repeal the National Security Law.

68. The current Government of Guinea, which had cone to power through a
mlitary coup d'état, although it had held an allegedly “denocratic” el ection
in 1993, had assassinated 90 per cent of the nenbers of the central comittee
of the opposition party and had tortured thousands of others. Meanwhile, the
usual World Bank/International Mnetary Fund (I MF) conditionalities had caused
record | evel s of unenploynent. The Conmi ssion should investigate the
situation in Guinea to secure conpliance with the Universal Declaration of
Human Ri ghts.

69. The United States of Anerica relentlessly violated human rights both at
home and abroad. It had one of the | argest incone gaps of any industrialized
nation and, in 1996, Congress had severely curtail ed assistance to poor
famlies and elimnated nearly all aid to legal inmgrants. Summary and
arbitrary executions of blacks and Latinos by | aw enforcenent agencies were on
the rise, sone of them being preneditated and carried out by death squads,
while the Government refused to give substantive replies to the urgent appeals
of the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions.
The United States had also intensified its illegal blockade of Cuba to include
reprisals against other countries that did business with Cuba. It had thus
not only had a negative effect on the econonmy and |iving conditions of Cubans
but had al so violated international standards concerning freedom of trade and
non-interference in the internal affairs of sovereign countries.

70. Since the actions of the federal, State and | ocal governments of the
United States forned a consistent pattern of gross violations of human rights,
t he Comm ssi on should appoint a country-specific special rapporteur to

i nvestigate the situation there

71. The current fervour to nmake reparation to Jew sh Hol ocaust victinms whose
funds had been stol en by Western banks ignored the issue of the reparations
due to the descendants of the millions of enslaved Africans whose involuntary
| abour had created the wealth of North America and Europe.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 13

72. Bar oness COX (Christian Solidarity International) said that, as a result
of the seven fact-finding visits she had made to | ocations in the Sudan

decl ared as “no-go” areas by the National Islamc Front (NIF), she endorsed
all the findings contained in the report of the Special Rapporteur on the
situation of human rights in the Sudan (E/CN. 4/1997/58). The N F regine,

whi ch had seized power in 1989 by overthrowi ng the denocratically el ected
Governnment, had made the Sudan one of the world' s worst human rights di saster
ar eas.

73. It was thus encouragi ng that rapidly expandi ng areas of the Sudan were
under the administration of the denopcratic opposition and that the devel opnment
of civil society and respect for human rights were progressing in those areas.
However, the NIF regine was doing its utnopst to reverse that progress,

inter alia by obstructing the delivery of humanitarian aid, seizing expatriate
and | ocal staff and banning the activities of relief agencies. |Its cynica
interference in the delivery of aid had resulted in needl ess death, disease
and hunger for mllions of people.

74. Her organi zation appealed to the Secretary-Ceneral to intervene
personally with the regine to secure the i medi ate and unconditiona

rel ease of all hostages and to convene a conference of governnmental and

non- governnental human rights and relief agencies to establish nechanisns for
the delivery of enmergency aid to the “no-go” areas. It called upon al
States, especially the industrialized denpocracies, to finance the Specia
Rapporteur's proposals for the establishnent of a network of human rights
monitors in the Sudan.

75. M. CASTILLO (Christian Denocrat International) said that the reports of
t he Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in Zaire were notable
for their objectivity, wealth of data and tinmeliness. They pointed out not
only the responsibilities of the dictatorship that had plunged that country

i nto bankruptcy and chaos, but also the human rights violations attributable
to the rebel novenent. Those who had risked their lives to defend human
rights and denocratic freedons in Zaire during the long years of oppression
must not be forgotten.

76. In Cuba, a nunber of foreign journalists who had visited the country

in 1996 had been detained, harassed and expelled. Cuban journalists who had
left the official press corps to start independent agenci es had been harassed
and subjected to reprisals.

77. In contravention of article 13 of the Universal Declaration of Human

Ri ghts, the Cuban Governnment used “internal exile” to punish its citizens.

In June 1996, two University of Havana students had been sentenced to five
years' internal exile for “disrespect”, on the ground that they had founded a
pro- denmocracy yout h group

78. In contravention of article 20 of the Declaration, the Cuban Gover nment
had prosecuted people for nerely trying to forman association. For exanple,
several people had been detained in 1996 for having signed a petition
requesting the legalization of the Movimento Cristiano Liberacioén, in
accordance with the Cuban legislation in force. One of them had been
sentenced to four years' inprisonnment for the crime of “eneny propaganda”



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 14

79. He urged the Governnent of Cuba to allowits citizens freedom of
movement and association within and outside the island, and to allow nationa
and foreign journalists to do their work unhanpered by restrictions or
reprisals.

80. M. BUSDACHI N (Transnational Radical Party) said that the nodern and
free society of Hong Kong was a tragic exception to the global trend towards
denocracy and human rights. The 1984 Sino-British Joint Declaration had
provi ded that, under the “one country, two systens” arrangenent, the
authorities would continue to respect the rule of |aw and existing rights
and freedons in Hong Kong. However, China would control the executive,

| egi sl ative and judicial branches of Hong Kong's CGovernnent, and Chi nese

| eaders had nmede intimidating statements concerning freedom of the press; a
new | aw on “subversion” woul d soon be enacted by China's appointed

| egi sl ature.

81. The 1991 Bill of Rights Ordinance, which contained all the rights
enshrined in the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,
enpower ed Hong Kong courts to strike down [ aws which were inconsistent with
those rights. However, the National People's Congress of China had repeal ed
those provisions. Draconian colonial laws restricting the freedom of assenbly
and association were to be resurrected and wi thout an elected legislature or a
bill of rights, it appeared that the rule of |aw would be inpossible to

mai ntain in Hong Kong.

82. The United Nations and world | eaders nust insist on the ful

i mpl enentati on of the United Nations-registered Joint Declaration, and the
Chi nese | eaders should return to their original policy of keeping Hong Kong
free and autononous.

83. Hi s organi zati on was al so concerned about China's denial of freedom of
opinion in Tibet, particularly since the |aunching of the “Stri ke Hard”
canmpaign in April 1996 and the “patriotic re-education” campai gn, which had
led to wi despread arrests and expul sions of nobnks and nuns who had resisted
“re-education” along Chinese communi st |lines. The Commi ssion should adopt a
strong resol ution on China.

84. The increase in human rights violations in the Federal Republic of
Yugosl avi a (Serbia and Montenegro), particularly in Kosovo, and the situation
of the Bulgarian mnority were nost disturbing. Al banians in Kosovo did not
enj oy any econonmic, social or cultural rights and, in 1996, there had been

14 killings or deaths in custody, while hundreds of people had been arrested
and nost of themill-treated. The Bulgarian mnority in eastern Serbia was
suffering severe harassnment and basic civil and political rights were not
observed

85. M. ESTEVE (International Federation Terre des Hommes) said that

over 110 million anti-personnel |andm nes were scattered in 64 countries, the
nost severely affected ones being Angola, Ethiopia, Eritrea, Myzanbi que
northern Somalia, Sudan, Afghanistan, Canbodia, Bosnia and the Kurdistan
region of Iraq. Landnm nes which were virtually uncontrollable once they had



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 15

been laid, indiscrimnately killed or nutilated over 2,000 people a nonth.
They had not only human costs but al so social ones, since they barred access
to land that could otherw se be inhabited or cultivated. Angola, for exanple,
had required substantial food aid in 1994 as a result of the | oss of arable

| and.

86. The exorbitant costs of dem ning operations placed a heavy burden on
countries' financial resources. While increasingly sophisticated mnes were
bei ng devel oped, denining techniques had made little progress and, at the
current rate, it would take 1,100 years to dem ne the planet, assum ng that no
new mnes were laid. That tinme could be considerably shortened, however, if
sufficient credits were made available for research on dem ning. He thus

wel comed the Canadi an Governnent's initiative in organizing a conference on
the subject and the decision of at |least 21 States to stop using |andm nes.

87. Nonet hel ess, the progress made thus far was insufficient. The

Commi ssi on nust address the issue, since the use of |andm nes violated human
rights generally and the rights of the child in particular. The Conm ssion
shoul d follow the exanple of the Sub-Comr ssion and adopt a resol ution
supporting a total ban on | andm nes.

88. Ms. LAROCHE (Robert F. Kennedy Menorial) said that violations of
fundamental rights in Indonesia had increased in 1997, in the form of
systematic detention, torture and killings, the mlitary forces being
primarily responsible. 1In the incident of 27 July 1996 at the headquarters of
the I ndonesi an Denocratic Party five people had been killed and 23 others had
di sappeared. In another incident, a group of university and secondary-schoo
students who favoured denocracy had been arrested on charges of subversion
and faced severe sentences. Various political organizations had been crushed,
in violation of freedom of association. The Commi ssion should urge the

I ndonesi an Governnent to cooperate with its special procedures.

89. M. LI Baodeng (China), speaking in exercise of the right of reply,

said that the statenent nade by the representative of the Netherlands on
behal f of the European Union had ignored the Chinese Governnment's substantia
achi evenents in the field of human rights and had made unwarranted accusati ons
that had no factual basis. 1In any event, the question of whether China had
made sufficient progress in human rights nust be judged by the Chinese people
t hemsel ves and not by Western countries.

90. Wth respect to Hong Kong, an inportant conponent of China's policy was
to safeguard the human rights of the residents of the Special Administrative
Regi on. The “one country, two systens” principle laid down in the Joint

Decl arati on was a sound basis for the pronotion of human rights, denocracy and
freedom and woul d gi ve Hong Kong great autonony. The previous system woul d
remai n unchanged; rights and freedonms would be fully guaranteed and a
denocratic political system would be devel oped in Hong Kong.

91. The British authorities had created obstacles to the enjoynent of human
rights and denocracy in Hong Kong. They had never in the past given Hong Kong
a bill of rights or the right to elect public officials; only on the eve of



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 50
page 16

Hong Kong's return to China had they hastily adopted a bill of rights and
proposed political reforms. Their aimwas to obstruct the rule of |aw after
Hong Kong's return to the notherl and.

92. Chi na was taking the necessary neasures, which were w dely supported, to
ensure a snooth transition and to preserve the stability and prosperity of
Hong Kong. The return of Hong Kong to China would have | ong-term positive
effects on world peace and devel opnent. Although some, out of nostalgia for
colonialism tried to nmake trouble by internationalizing the issue, those
attenpts were bound to fail.

93. M. EL NASSRI (Observer for the Sudan), speaking in exercise of the
right of reply, said that the Union of Arab Jurists had made fal se allegations
about his country. The person who had spoken on behal f of that organization
was a nmenber of the rebel nmovement in the Sudan. Sonme NGOs, while ostensibly
def endi ng human rights, were actually trying to sow panic and disorder. The

i nternational comunity nmust put a stop to such practices; however, its
failure to act had had harnful consequences for the people of the Sudan

I nternational conventions nust be enforced.

94. The Union of Arab Jurists had alleged that the Special Rapporteur on the

situation of human rights in the Sudan had suffered ill-treatment and
expul sion by the Sudanese authorities. That allegation was inconprehensible,
and showed that the organization was using the Comrission to spread lies. |If

Commi ssi on nenbers wanted to know the truth, they should re-read the statenent
delivered the preceding day by the Mnister of Justice of the Sudan

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




